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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT _
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Saudi Arabian Cooperative Insurance Company (a Saudi
Joint Stock Company) (the “Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2020, and the statements of income, comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial staternents, including a sutnmary of significant
accounting policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in alt material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cashi flows for
the year then ended in aceordance with International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS8s) that are
endorsed In the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi
Osganization forCertified Public Accountants (SOCPA),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (“ISA™) that are
endursed in the Kingdoin of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those siandards are further described
in the Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of gur report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are
endorséd in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant fo our audit of the financial stalements, and
we have [uifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matter :

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the curient year, This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our oplnion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For the matier below, a description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context:
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{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) - (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter (continued)

The key audit matter

How the matfer was addressed in our audit

Valuation of ulitimate claim liabilities arising
from insurance contracts

The Comnpany ag at December 31, 2020 has gross
technical reserves amounting te SR 503.3 million
a3 reported in Note 7 of the financial statements,
which includes outstanding eclaims, claims
incurred bui not reported (TBNR), additional
premium and other technical reserves.

The Company uses a range of actuatial
methodologies. 1o estimate these claims. This
requires significant judgments relating to factors
and assumptions such -as inflation, clpitns
development pattern and repulatory requirements.

The wvaluation of technical reserves is a key
judgmentat area for the management given the
level of subjectivity inhierent in estimating the
impact of claim events that have occurred for
which the ultimate outcome remains uncertain,

D¢ to the significance of the amounts involved
and the exercise of significant judpment by the
management in the process for determination of
the technical veserves, we have determined It to be
4 key audit matter,

Refer to notes 2(d)i) which discloses the
estimated liability avisimg from claims under
insurance comtracts and note 3 which discloses
aceounting policies for claims.

We evaluated the design and tested the
implementation of key controls over the
Company’s processes forthe claims processing and
payment, including controls over the completeness
and acauracy of the claim estimates recarded.

We evaluated the appropriateness of the reserving
methodologies uséd in estimating the insurance
claim iinbility as part of our substantive procedures.

We performed substantive tests on the amounts
recorded for a sample of ¢laims notified-and paid;
ineluding comparing the outstanding claims
amount. 1o appropriale source documeniation to
evaluate the valuation of cutstanding claims and
tecimical reserves,

To challenge management's methodologies and
assumptions, we were assisted by an actuary
engaged by us as auditors' experl to undefstand and
evaluate the Company’s acluarial practices and the
provisions established. In order 0 gain comfort
over the actuarial report issued by management’s
expert, our actuary performed the following:

«  Ewsluated whether the Company's actuarial
methodologies wers consistent with those used
in the industry and with prior periods, secking
sufficient  justification  for  significant
differences.

- Assessed koy acluarial assumptions including
claime ratios, and expected frequency and
severity of clalms. We challenged these
assumptions by comparing them with our
expectations based on the Company’s
historical experience, current trends and our
own, industry kuewledge,

- Reviewed the appropriateness of the
caloulation methods and approach along with
the assumptions used and sensitivities to the
key assumptions,

We also assessed the appropristeness of the
fingnclal statements disclosures relating to this
matter against the requirements of IFRS that are
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) - (CONTINUED)

Other Information

The Management of the Company are responsibie-for the other information, The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, other than thé flnancial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expectéd to be made available to us after the date of this
auditors® report.

‘Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
taterially inconsistent with the finaneial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a taterial misstatement therein, we are
required to comnuinicaie the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements’ _

The Management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the IFRSs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements issued by SOCPA, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companles, and
the Company's by-laws, and for such internal control as the Management determine is necessary to enable
the préparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaiement, whether due to frand or
error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Management are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intend to liquidate the
Company orto cease operatians, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to ablain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statenents as a whole are
free from material misstatemneat, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is # high level of assurance, but is not 4 guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA) that are endorsed In the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will always detect-n material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually or in the agpregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basls of these financial
statements. '
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A BAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) - (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we
exerclse professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financiat stmements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit-evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk af pot detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivéness of the Company's internal control;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management;

o Conclude on tlie appropriateness of Management use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the avdit evidence obtairied, whether a material unceainty exists refated to events or
canditions that may cast significam doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that 8 material uncertainty exists, we are required 10 draw attention in owr suditors” report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidenee obtained up to the date of our anditars'
reporl, However, future évents or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

¢ Evaluate the overnll presentation, steucture and content of the flnancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events int
a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among otheér matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and sipnificant audit findings, including any significant deficfencies in internal
control that we identify during our awdit of the Company,

We also provide those charged with governance with a staterent that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our indepandence, and where applicable, related
safaguards,
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INDEPENDENT AUPITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) - (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Fram the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matteror when, in extremely rare.circumstances, we delermine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As-at 31 December 2620
(Al amounts in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Murabaha deposits

Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable - net
Reinsurers' share of unearned premiums
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Available-for-sale investments

Fair value through profit or toss investments
Held-to-maturity investmerit

Prepayments and other assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Statutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Policyholders' claims payable
Accrued expenses and other labilities
Surplus distribution payable
Reinsurance balances payable
Unearned premiums

Unearned reinsurance commission
Outstanding claims and reserves
Claims incurred but not reported
Accounts payable

Employees' end-of-service benefits
Provision for zakat

Accrued cominission income payable to SAMA
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)
Re-measurement reserve:-of end-of-service bencfits
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

] ﬂ\]w@g/\m 7

MOHAN VA RGHES(FJ
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

BOARD MEMBER

Note

To
Ta
7a
7d
8a
8b
8

10
10
i

12
13

7b
7¢
7a
Ta

14

15

16
I8

25

= g
ABBUEAZIZ A, ADUSSUUD®

2020 2019
49,999,727 44,190,245
341,916,296 393,005,161
245,872,196 217,877,042
39,420,956 34,093,154
339,166,728 364,623,633
43,367,257 41,470,036
18,459,055 16,877,051
1,923,080 1,923,080
90,028,540 90,671,601
35,531,657 10,192,936
58,309,900 52,629,988
4,833,267 4,035,618
9,503,358 7,626,598
30,000,000 30,000,000
2,799,638 2,363,024
1,311,431,655 1,311,579,167
21,607,449 23,331,651
64,916,997 43,143,731
5,577,137 .
53,730,084 93,268,021
265,548,157 255,633,330
6,759,142 6,714,158
385,850,240 428,202,293
117,468,630 122,763,884
1,445,922 1,407,836
18,705,950 15,082,288
10,517,581 9,047,924
2,799,639 2,363,024
954,926,928 1,000,958,140
300,000,000 300,000,000
29,473,371 20,008,901
26,981,720 (10,876,161)
49,636 1,488,287
356,504,727 310,621,027
1.311,431,655 1,311,579,167

HASSAN
PRE




SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 Pecember 2020

(AN amounts in Saudi Riyals unless pthherwise stated)

REVENUES

Gross premiums written

Reinsurance premiums ceded

- Local

- International (includes premium ceded through local broker)

Exgess of loss expenses
- Local
- International

Net premiums written
Movement in uncarned pretriwing, net
Net premiums earned

Reitisurance commissions
Other underwriting income
NET REVENUES

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES

Gross claims paid

Reinsurers’ share of claims paid

Net claims paid

Movement in outstanding claims, IBNR and other reserves, net
Net claigis inewrred

Policy acquisitioi costs
Inspection and supervision fees
TOTAL UNRERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES

NET UNDERWRITING INCOME

OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES)

[ncome from-investments

Unrealized loss/{gain) from change in fair value-of FVTPL investments

Income from murabakia depasits

Other income

General and admihistrative expenses

Investments expenses

Pravision for.doubiful debis

TOTAL OTHER INCOME/AEXPENSES)

Total income/(loss) for the year

Surplus attributed to the insurance operations

Total income/(loss) for the year attributable to the sharcholders before zakat
Zakat charge for the year

Total income/{loss) for the year attributable to the shareholders after zakat
Earnings per share

Basic and diluted income/(loss) per share

Weighted average number of shares in-issue throughaut the year (in thousdnds)

R“M ABDULAZIZ A, ABUSSUU

- U s BOARDMEMUBER™
MOHAN VARGHESE g

CIHEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

The accempanying noteg | to 27 form an intcgral part of thege findncial siatements,

Note

7o

7b

7c

7a
7a

7a

7d

13

15

2020 2019
795,037,966 834,341,165
(54,518,400)  (d45,431,258)

(170,236,024) (159,780,087
(224,754,424)  (205,211,315)
(402,364) (757,883)
(36,896,403)  (55,551,999)
(37,298,767)  (56,309.812)
| 532,984,775 572,820,038
(4,587,025) 55,659,379
528,397,750 628,479,417
31,057,481 26,686,974
6,868,488 7,642,642
566,323,719 662,809,033
446,868,497 646,925,036
(78,800,405} (84,800,191
367,978,002 562,124,845
(24,087,633)  (70,608,769)
343,890,469 491,516,076
58,236,814 63,250,572
6,907,784 7,215,553
409,035,067 561,982,201
157,288,652 100,826,832
3,489,935 1,717,642
(643,061) $,359,793
9,716,035 14,084,282
3,091,691 4,131,215
(105,749,193)  (109,682,370)
- (2,000,000}
(4,033,355)  (19;819,537)
{94,127,948)  (103,208,975)
63,160,704 (2,382,143}
{5,577,137) -
57,583,567 (2,382,143)
{10,261,216) {8,252,798)
47,322,351 (10,634,941}
1.58 (0.35)
30,000 36,000

5




SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2020

{All amourids in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Nole

Total income/(loss) for the year after zakat

Other comprehensive income/(loss);
Htems that will not be reclassified to statément of income i

- Actuarial (loss)/gains-on remeasurement of employees' end-of-service
benefits 14

Items that may be reclassified to statements of income in
- Transter of fair value resérve on disposal of AFS investmert 8

Total comprehensive income/(logs) for the year after zakat
Total comprehensive income attributable to the insurance operations

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to the sharcholders after zakat

(}/7"‘\ )
e S S

ABDULAZIZ. A-ABUSSUTD
%\A \JO)\ﬂK(M <= BOARD MEMBER

MOHAN VARGHESE \_)
CHIEF FINANCIAL OF Fle R

2020 2019

52,899,488  (10,634,941)

(1,438,651) 1,491,957

- (789,654)

51,460,837 (9,932,638)

(4,138,486} (702,303)

47,322,351 _ (10,634,941)

HASSAN ADULLA DORAR ALI
PRESIDENT AND CEO
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Al amonnts in Sawdi Riyals unless otherwise stated)
Note
CASH FLOWS FROM GPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total profit/(foss) for the year befors zakat
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment 10
Amertization of intangible assets 10
Provision for doubtfut debts 6
Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits 14
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale investment 8a
Unrezlized loss/(gain) from change in fair value of FVTPL investments gb
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Premiums and reinsurers' receivable
Reinsurers’ share of unearned preminms
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims
Reinsurers’ share of ¢laims ineurred but not reported
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Deferred excess of loss premiums
Prepayments and other assets
Staiutory deposit
Policyholders claims payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Reinsurance balances payable
Unearned premiums
Unearned reinsurance-commission
Outstanding claims and reserves
Claims ineurred but not reported
Accounts payable
Cash used in operating activities

Surplus paid to policy holders 13
Employees' end-ol-service benefits paid 14
Zakat paid 15
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -

Additions of property and equipment 10
Additions of intangible dssets 10
Proceed from disposal of available-for-sale investments Ba
Fair value through profit or loss invesiments 8b
Additions inmurabaha deposits

Proceed on disposal of murabaha deposils

Net eash from/(used in) investing activities

Net change in cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4
Cash and cash equivaients at the end of the year 4

Supplemental non-cash information:
Change in fair value of available-for-gale investments 8a
Actuarial gains on remeasurement of employees' end-of-service benefits 14

ot ¥

;\BDU:;{«&L'IZ“&ABUSSU il
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MEHANVARCH EJ
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFHCER

The apramnanving natee 1 ia 277 fnema an inteoral nart of these financial statemenis

2020 2019
63,160,704 (2,382,143)
2,098,099 2,409,980
1,876,845 1,348,700
4,033,355 19,819,537
4,257,890 4,048,125

. (1,269,597}
643,061 (8,359,793)
(32,028,508) 20,416,837
(5,327,802) 12,706,917
25,456,905 41,753,503
(1,897,221 (10,820,550)
(1,582,004) 4,434,736
. 464,904
(31,018,633)  (13,244,774)
(1,724,202) (7,716,701)
21,773,266 (24,527,889)
(39,537,937 38,275,552
9,914,827 (68,366,296)
44,984 (201,495)
(42,352,053)  (117,815,479)
(5,295,254) 16,273,758
38,086 82,333
(27465,392)  (92,669,835)
- (7,729,845)
(2,072,879) (2,349,880)
(8,791,559) (1,912,504)
(38,330,030) (110,662,064
(2,895,748) (2,657,257)
(4,053,605) (2,952,255)
h 5,956,853
- (82,311,808)
(676,448,739) (814,834,927
727,537,604 875,723,491
44,139,512 (21,075,903)
5,809,482 (131,737,967)
44,190,245 175,928,212
49,999,727 44,190,245
- (789,654)
{1,438,651) 1,491,957
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(AN amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

1 ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Saudi Arabian Cooperative Insurance Company (the “Company”) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company registered in the
Kingdom of Saudl Arabia under commercial registration No, 1010237214 dated 7 Shaban 1428H, (corresponding to 20
August 2007), The 1egistered office address of the Company is P.Q, Box 58073, Riyadh 11594, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
The objective of the Company ig to transact cooperative insurance operations and related activities in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia. The Company's principal lines of business include all clesses of general and medical insurance. The Company was
listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange (“Tadawul™) on 20 Shaban 1428H, (corresponding to 3 September 2007).

5 . 4

Following are the details of the branches of the Company end their commercial registration numbers:

Comimercial
‘ Registration )
Branch Name ) Branch Number Date
Saudi Arabian Cooperative Insurance Company Jeddah 4030208674 25 Safar 1432H (31 Jarmary 2011}
Saudi Arabian Cooperative Insurance Company Khobar 2051044793 25 Safar 1432H (31 January 2011}
Saudi Arabian Cooperative Insurance Company Qassim 1131034133 25 Safar 1432H (31 January 2011}

The Company has been licensed to conduct insurance b;;iness in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under co-operative
principles in accordance with Royal Decree numbered 60/M dated 18 Ramadan 1427H (corresponding to 11 October
2006), pursuant to the Council of Ministers resolution number 233 dated 16 Ramadan 1427H {corresponding to 9 October
2006).

Following the completion of the public offering on 28 May 2007, the Ministry of Commerce and Investment {*MOCI")
issued a resolution declaring the incorporation of the Company on 21 Rajab 1428H (comresponding to 5 August 2007).

" On 29 Shaban 1428H (corresponding to |1 September 2007), the Saudi Central Bank (*SAMA™) issued a formal approval
to transact insurance business, thus suthorizing the Company to commence operations as seon as product approval and
related formalities are completed,

The Board of Directors approved the distribution of the surplus from insurance operations in accordance with the
Implementing Regulations issued by SAMA, whereby the shareholders of the Company are to receive 90% of the annual
surplus from insurance operations and the policy holders are to receive the remaining 10%. Any deficit arising on insurance
operations is borne by the sharchalders in full.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Basis of presentation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS'), as
endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organisation for Certified
Public Accountants (SOCPA), Law of Companies and the Company's by-laws.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
{All amounts in Sandi Riyals unless otherwise stated}

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a) Basis of presentation and measurement (continued)

These financial statements are prepared under the going concern concept and the historical cest convention, except for the
measurement at fair value of available-for-sale investments, fair value through profit or loss investments and measurzment
at present value of employees' end-of-service benefit obligations. The Company's staiement of financial position is not

presented using a current/non-current classification. However, the following balances would generally be classified as non-
current: Held to maturity invesiments, Property and equipment, Intangible assets, Statutory deposit, Accrued income on

statutory deposit, Employees’ end-of-service benefits and Accrued commission income payable to SAMA. All other

financial statement line items would generally be classified as current. '

The Company presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. As required by the Saudi Arabian Insurance
Regulations, the Company maintains separate books of accounts for Insurance Operations and Shareholders’ Operations
and presents the financial statements accordingly (Note 26). Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses clearly attributable
either activity are recorded in the respective accounts. The basis of aflocation of expenses from joint operations is
determined and approved by the management and the Board of Directors, :

The statement of financial position, statement of incame, statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows
of the insurance operations and sharcholders operations which are presented in Note 26 of the financial staterments have
been provided as supplementary financial information to comply with the requirements of the guidelines issued by SAMA
implementing regulations and is-not required under IFRSs. SAMA implementing regulations requires the clear segregation
of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the insurance operations and the shareholders operations. Accordingly, the
statements of financial position, statements of income, statement of comprehensive income and statement of cesh flows
prepared for the insurance operations and shareholders operations as referred to above, reflect only the assets, liabilities,
income, expenses and comprehensive gains or losses of the respective operations.

In preparing the Company-level financial statements in compliance with IFRSs, the balances and transactions of the
insurance operations are amalgamated and combined with those of the shareholders’ aperations. Inter-operation balances
and transactions are eliminated in full during amalgamation. The accounting policies adopted for the insurance operations
and shareholders operations are uniform for Hke transactions and events in similar circumstances.

(b) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements have been presented in Saudi Riyals (SR}, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

(¢}  Fiscal year
The Company follows a fiscal year ending 31 December.

(d)  Critical accounting jndgments, estimates and assumptions ‘

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during he reporting period: Although these estimates and judgments are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates..

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the vircumstances.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(AN amounts in Saudt Riyals wriless otherwise stated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(@)  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that are critical in preparation of these financial statements;

i The ultimate Hability arising from claims made under insurance contracts
The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from ¢laims made under insurance contracts is the Cotmpany®s most critical
accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the lability that
the Company will ultimately pay for such claims. Estimates are made at the end of the reporting period both for the
expected ultimate cost of claim reported and for the expected ultimate costs of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”).
Liabilities for unpaid reported claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the
Company. At the end of each reporting period, prior period claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes are
made to the provision. )

The provision for IBNR is an estimation of claims which are expected to be reported subsequent 1o the date of interim
condensed statement of financial pesition, for which the insured event has occurred prior to the date of interim condensed
statement of financial position. The primary technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and [BNR
claims, is that of using the past claims settfement trends to predict future claims settlernent trends. A range of methods such
as Chain Ladder Method,.Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method and Expected Loss Ratio Method are used by the actuaries to
determine these provisions. The actuary has alsc used a segmentation approach including analyzing cost per member per
year for medicel line of business. Underlying these methads are a number of explicit or implicit assumptions relating to the
expected settlement amount and settlement patterns of claims,

i) Impairment of investments

The Company determines that financial assets are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair values of the financial assets below its cost. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires
judgement, A period of 12 months or longer is considered to be prolonged and a decline of 30% from original cost is
considered significant as per Company policy. In making this judgement, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the
duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

i) Impalrment of receivables

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankeuptcy or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in paymenis
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.

iv)  Falr value of financial instruments

Fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values.
The fair value of cornmission-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows using commission for jtems with
similar terms and risk characteristics.

The fair values of financial instruments where no active market exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available
are determined by using valuation techniques. In these cases the fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of
similar financial instruments or using models, Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated based
on appropriate assumptions. Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values, they are validated and
periadically reviewed by qualified personrel independent of those that sourced them. All models used are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable
data; however, areas such as credit risk (both own credit risk and counterparty risk), volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
{dil amounts in Sandi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

{(d) Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

v Deferred policy acquisition costs -

Certain acquisition costs related to sale of policies are recorded as deferred acquisition costs and are amortized over the
related period of policy coverage. If the assumptions relating to firtare profitability of these policies are not realized, the
amotization of these costs could be accelerated and this may also require additional impairment.

vi}  Premium deficiency reserve

Estimation of the premium deficiency reserve, if any, is highly sensitive to a number of assumptions as to the future events
and conditions. It is based on an expected loss ratio for the unexpired portion of the risks for written policies. To arrive at
the estimate of the expected loss ratio, the actuary looks at the claims and premiums relationship which is expected to be
realized in the future.

vii}  Impact of Covid-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Crganisation (*WHQ") declared the Coronavirus (“COVID-19") outbreak as a
pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread across the globe, This outbreek has also affected the GCC region including the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Governments ali over the world took steps to contain the spread of the virus. Saudi Arabia in
particular has implemented closure of bordets, released social distancing guidelines and enforced country wide lockdowns
and curfews.

In response to the spread of the Covid-19 virus in the GCC and other where the Company operates and its consequential
disruption to the soctal and economic activities in those markets, the Company’s management has proactively assessed its
impacts on its operations and has taken a series of proactive and preventative measures and processes to ensure:

- the health and safety of its employees and the wider community where it is operating
- the continuity of its business throughaout the Kingdom is protected and kept intact.

‘The major impact of Covid-19 pandemic is seen in medical and motor line of business as explained below. As with any
estimate, the projections and [ikelihoods of occurrence are underpinned by significant judgment and rapidly evolving
situation and uncertainties surrounding the duration and severity of the pandemic, and therefore, the actual outcomes may
be different to those projected, The impact of such uncertain economic environment is judgmentat, and the Company will
continue to reassess its position and the related impact on a regular basis.

Medical technical reserve

Based on the management’s assessment, the management believes that the Government’s decision to assume the medical
treatment costs for both Saudi citizens and expatriates has helped in reducing any unfavourable impact. During the
lockdown, the Company saw a decline in medical reported claims {majorly elective and non-chronic treatment claims)
which resulted in a drop in claims experience. Hawever, subsequent to the lifting of lockdown since 21 June 2020, the
Company is experiencing a surge in claims which is in line with the expectations of the Company's management. The
Company’s management has duly considered the impact of surge in claims in the current estimate of future contractual cash
flows of the jnsurance contracts in force as at 31 December 2020 for its liability adequacy test. Based on the results, the
Company has booked an amount of SR 3.77 million as a premium deficiency reserve.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Al mounts in Saicdi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(d)  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)
viip  Impact of Covid-19 (conitinued)

Motor technical reserves

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, SAMA issued a circular 189 (the “circular”) dated 08 May 2020 to all insurance
companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Amongst other things, the circular instructed insurance companies to extend
the period of validity of all existing retail motor insurance policies by further two months as well as providing a two-month
additional coverage for all new retail motor policies written within one month of this circular.

The Management, in conjunction with its appointed acivary, deliberated on a variety of internal factors and concluded, that
the Company considers the extension of two months in exiting motor policies as rew policy and record a premium
deficiency reserve based on the expected claims for the extended two months® period.

For new policies written as per above circular, the premium is earned over the period of coverage ie 14 month as per the
Company accounting policy.

The Company has performed a Hability adequacy test using current estimates of futurt cash flows under its insurance
contracts at an aggregated (or “segmented”) level for motor line of business and recorded a Premium deficiency reserve
amounting to SR 4,15 million as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: SR 1.53).

Financial assets

To cater for any potential impacts, the Covid-1% pandemic may have had on the financial assets of the Company, the
Cornpany has performed an assessment in accordance with its accounting policy, to determine whether thers is an objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets has been impaired. For debt financial assets, these include
factars such as, significant financial difficulties of issuers or debtors, default or delinquency in payments, probability that
the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, ste. In case of equities classified under
available-for-sale, the Company has performed an assessment to determine whether there is & significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of financial assets below their cost.

Based on these assessments, the Company’s management believes that the Covid-19 pandemic has had no material effects
on Company’s reported results for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company’s management continues to monitor
the situation closely. ‘

Credit risk management

The Company has strengthened its credit risk management policies to address the fast changing and evolving risks posed
by the current circumnstances. These include review of credit concentraticns at the granular economic sector, region and
counterparty level and the Company has taken appropriate action where required, Based ¢n the review, the Company has
identified the certain sectors such as government conlracting, airlines, retail sector and hospitality industry as being
impacted significantly by the Covid-19 pandemic and lower oil prices.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been cansistently applied to each of the years presented. There are no new stendards issued, however, there
are number of amendments to standards which are effective from 1 January 2020 but they do not have a material effect on
the Company’s Financial Statements, The Company has not early adopted any standard (interpretation) or amendmsnts that
has been issued but which are not yet affective.

16



SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless etherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Standards issued but not yet eficctive
The Company has chosen not to early adopt the amendments and revisions to the IFRSs, which have been published and
ate mandatory for compliance for the Company with effect from future dates.

Effective from
Standavd/ periods beginning on
Interpretation/ : or after the following
Amendment Description : date
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (refer below) 1-Jan-23
IFRS 17 ' Insurance Contracts (refer below) 1-Jan-23

A. IFRS 9 - Financlal Instruments

This standard was published on 24 July 2014 and has replaced IAS 39. The new standard eddresses the following items
related to financial instruments:

a, Classification and measurement:
TFRS 9 uscs a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized cost, at fair value through
other comprehensive income or af fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both:

i the asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets in order to cellect contractual
cash flows; and :

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are selely paymenis of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPI™).

The financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, and realized gains or losses are recycled
through profit or loss upon sale, if both conditions are met: ’

i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to coflect contractual cash flows
and for sale;and
if, the contractual terms of cash flows are SPPI

Assets not meeting either of these categories are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Additionally, at initial
recognition, an entity cen use the option to designate a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

For cquity instruments that are not held for trading, an entity can also make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the instruments (including realized gains and losses),
dividends being recognized in profit or loss.

Additionally,. for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is atiributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the lisbility’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

b, Impairment: ]

The impairment model under IFRS & reflects expected credit losses, s opposed to incurred credit losses under IAS 39.
Under the IFRS 9 approach, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have ocourred before credit losses are
recognized. Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk sincs initial recognition.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COGPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All amonnts In Saudl Riyaly unless atherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

A. IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

¢ Hedge accounting:

IFRS 9 introduces rew requirements for hedge accounting that align hedge accounting more closely with Risk

Management. The requirements establish a more principles-based approach to the general hedge accounting model, The

amendments apply to all hedge accounting with the exception of portfolio fair value hedges of interest rate risk (commonly

referred to as “fair value macro hedges™). For these, an entity may continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements

" currently in JAS 39.This exception was granted largely because the IASB 'is addressing macro hedge accounting as a
separate project.

Effective date
The published effective date of IFRS 9 was 1st January 2018. However, amendments to IFRS 4 — Insurance Confracts:

Applying IFRS 9 ~ Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts, published on 12th September, 2016, changes
the existing IFRS 4 to allow entities issuing insurance contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 to mitigate certain effects of
applying IFRS 9 before the IASB®s new insurance coniract standard (IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts) becomes effective.
The amendments introduce two alternative options:

1. apply a temporary exemption from implementing IFRS ¢ urtil the earlier of

- 8. the effective date of a new insurance contract standard; or
b.  annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Additional disclosures related to financial
assets are required during the deferral period. This option is only available to entities whose activities are
predominately connected with insurance and have not applied IFRS 9 previously; or

2. adopt IFRS ¢ but, for designated financial assets, remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting
mismatches that may occur before the new insurance contract standard is implemented.

The Company has performed a detailed assessment as of reporting date:

1. The carrying amount of the Company’s liabilities arising from contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 (including
deposit components or embedded derivatives unbundled from insurance contracts) were compared to the total
carrying amount of all its liabilities; and '

2. the total camrying amount of the Company’s liabilities connected with insurance were compared to the total carrying
amount of all its liabilities. Based on these assessments the Company determined that it is eligible for the temporary
exemption, Consequently, the Company has decided to defer the implementation of IFRS 9 until the effective date of
the new insurance contracts standard. Disclosures related to financial assets required during the deferral period are
included in the Company’s financial statements.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(All amounis in Saudi Riyals unless othterwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}
A, IFRS9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

Impact assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has total financial assets and insurance related assets amounting to SR 603 million
(31 December 2019: SR 615 million) and SR 585 million (31 December 2019: SR 583 million), respectively. Curently,
financial assets held at amortized cost consist of cash and cash equivalents and certain other recelvables amounting to SR
461 million (31 December 2019: SR 522 million). Other financial assets consist of available for sale investments
amounting to SR 1.9 millien (31 December 2019: SR 1.9 million), The Company expest to use the FYOCI classification of
these financial assets based on the business model of the Company for debt securities and sirategic nature of equity
investments. However, the Company is yet to perform a detailed assessment to determine whether the debt securities meet
the SPPI test as required by JFRS 9. Investment in funds classified under available for sale investments will be at FVSI
under IFRS 9. Other financial assets have a fair value of SR 90 million as at 31 December 2020 with a fair value change
during the year of SR 2.4 million.

The Company financial assets have low credit risk as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. The above is based on
high-level impact assessment of IFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on currenily available information and may
be subject to changes Arising from further detailed analyses or additional teasonable and supportabie information being
made available to the Company in the future. Overall, the Company expects some cffect of applying the impairment
reguirements of [FRS 9: However, the impact of the same is not expected to be significant, At present it is not possible to
provide redsonable estimate of the effects of application of this new standard as the Company is yet to perform a detailed
review.,

B. IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

Overview
This standard has beer. published in May, 2017. It establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 — Insurance contracts,

The new standard appiies to insurance contracts issued, to all reinsurance coniracts and to investment confracts with
discretionary participating features, provided the entity also issues insurance contracts. It requires to separate the following
components from insurance contracts:

i embedded derivatives, if they meet certain specified criteria;
i distinet investment components; and :
il  any promise to transfer distinct goods or non-insurance services. i

These components should be accounted for separately in accordance with the related standards {IFRS 9 and IFRS 15).

Measurement
In contrast 1o the requirements in IFRS 4, which permitted insurers to continue to use the accounting policies for
measurement purposes that existed pricr to January 2015, TFRS 17 provides the following different measurerent madels:

The General Measurement Model (GMM) is based on the following “building blocks™

a. the fulfilment cash flows (FCF), which comprise:
+  probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows,
« an adjustment to reflect the time value of money (i.e. discounting) and the financial risks associated with those
future cash flows, and
» arisk adjustment for non-financial risk;
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (continued)
Measurement - continued

b. the Contractual Service Margin (CSM) - The CSM represents the unearned profit for a group of insurance contracts
and will be recognized as the entity provides services in the future. The CSM cannot be negative at inception; any
net negative amount of the fulfilment cash flows at inception will be recorded in profit or loss immediately.

At the end of each subsequent reporting period, the carrying amount of 2 group of insurance contracts is re-measured to be
the sum of; :

= the liability for remaining coverage, which comprises the FCF related to future services and the CSM of the group at
that date; and

« the lizbility for incurred claims, which is measured as the FCF related to past services allocated to the group at that
date. :

The CSM is adjuéted subsequently for changes in cash flows related to future services. Since the CSM cannot be negative,
~ changes in future cash flows that are greater than the remaining CSM are recognized in profit or loss.

The effect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or other comprehensive income, determined
by an accounting pelicy choice.

The Variable Fee Approach (VFA) is a mandatory model for measuring contracts with direct participation features {(also
referred to as ‘direct participating contracts’). This assessment of whether the contract meets these criteria is mads at
fnception of the contract and not reassessed subsequently. For these contracts, in addition to the adjustment under GMM,
the CSM is also adjusted for: )

i the entity’s share of the changes in the fair value of underlying items ,
ii,  the effect of changes in the time value of money and in financial risks not relating to the underlying items.

In addition, a simplified Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) is permitted for the measurement of the liability for
remaining coverage if it provides a measurement that is not materially different from the General Measurement Medel for
the group of contracts or if the coverage period for each contract in the group is one year or less. With the PAA, the
liahility for remaining coverage corresponds to premiums received ai initial recognition less insurance acquisition cash
flows. The General Measurement Model remains applicable for the measurement of the lability fer incurred claims.
However, the entity is not required to adjust future cash flows for the time value of money and the effect of financial risk if
those cash flows are expected to be paid/received in one year or less from the date the claims are incurred.

Effective date

The JASB issued an Exposure Draft Amendments to IFRS 17 proposing certain amendments to IFRS 17 during June 2019
and received comments from various stakeholders. The IASB is currently re-deliberating issues taised by stakeholders. For
any proposed amendments to IFRS 17, the IASB will follow its normal due pracess for standard-seiting, The effective date
of IFRS 17 and the deferral of the IFRS 9 temporary exemption in IFRS 4 is currently 1 January 2021, Under the current
exposure draft, it is proposed to amend the [FRS 17 effective date to reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 January
2022. Further, on 17 March 2020, The (IASB) completed its discussions on the amendments to IFRS 17 and decided that
the effective date of the Standard will be deferred to reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. Earlier
application is permitted if bath IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
have also been applied. The Company intends to apply the Standard on its effective date.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Al amounis In Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continned)
B. IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (continued)

Transition
Retrospective application is required. However, if full retrospective application for a group of insurance contracts is
impracticable, then the entity is required to choose either a modified retrospective approach or a fair value approach.

Presentation and Dtsclosures

The Company expects that the new standard will resualt in a change to the accounting policies for insurance contracts and
reinsurance, {and investment coniracts with discretionary participating features, if applicable] together with amendments to
presentation and disclosures,

Impact

The Company has performed an initial impact assessment of the application and implementation of [FRS 17. As of the date
of the publication of these financial statements, the final financial impact of adopting the standard has yet to be fully
assessed by the Company. The Compeny has underiaken art initial operational impact gap analysis and currently
undergoing through detailed operational and financial impact assessment. Key gaps and their impact are as follows:

Impact Area Summary of Impaet

Financial Impact The Company is in process to ascertain the financial impact on
reported balances of year 2018. As the Company’s most of insurance
contracts are short-termed and short tailed entitling for premium
allocation approach (PAA) which is largely similar to current
account practice, no significant impact is expected.

Data impact IFRS 17 has additional data requirements {e.g. premium due date for
initial recognition, premium receipt data for the LFRC, RI contracts
held break down into risk attaching or loss incuwrring for assessing
contract boundaries, lower granularity to mest level of aggregation
requirements and data for additional disclosures as per IFRS 17).
Further extensive exercise will be carried out to ensure the required
data is available.

IT systems impact : Detailed assessment needed of existing systems capabilities for [FRS
17 calculations, storage and reporting and whether new
systems/calculation engines should be implemented.

Process impact The company carried out an operational impact assessment exercise
to assess the operational impact of implementing IFRS 17. Since,
majority of the company’s contracts would be measured under the
premium allocation approach, the process impact {s expected to be
moderate.

Impact on Reinsurance arrengements Further assessment is needed to confirm nieasurement approach for
reinsurance arrangsments where RI gross premmm ceded does not
automatically qualify for PAA.

Impact on policies and control frameworks The Company's policies and procedures needs update to
accommodate the changes in the Company’s processes and systems
related to [FRS 17 implementation. Detailed exercise for the purpese
shall be carried out after ascertaining financial and operational gaps
assessment.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B.  IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (continued)

The Company is currenily in design phase of IFRS 17 implementation wkich requires developing and designing new
processes and procedures for the business including any system developments required under IFRS 17 and detailed
assessment of business requirements. Following are the main areas under design phase and status of the progress is as
follows:

Major areas of design phase Summary of prégress

Govemnanos and control framework The Company has put in place a comprehensive IFRS 17 governance
program which includes establishing oversight steering committee
for monitoring the progress of implementation and assigning roles
and responsibilities to various stakeholders.

Operational area The Company i3 in progress of designing operational aspects of the
design phase which includes establishing comprehensive data policy
and data dictionary. Also the Company is finalizing architectural
designs for various sub-systems. The Company has progressed
through assessment of busingss requirements and currently working
on vendor selection while finalizing various process needed for
transition and assessment of new resources needed.

Technical and financial area * |The Company has completed various policy papers encompassing |
various technical and financial matters after concluding on policy
decisions required under the IFRS 17 standard, The pelicy decisions
are taken after due deliberations emong various stakeholders.
Currently majority of policy papers have been approved by the
Company's IFRS 17 project steering committee.

Assurance plan ) The Company is working along with other stakeholders to finalize
the assurance plan for transitional and post-implementation periods.

The Company has started its implementation process and has set up a project team, supstvised by Company's CEO.
Furthermore, to assess financial and aperational impact of IFRS-17, the Company has hired Deloitte & Touche Advisory
Saudi Limited (Deloitte) as their consultants, '

The effective interpretations/improvement/amendments do not have material impact on these interim condensed financial
statements of the company.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The significant accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are set out below have been consistently
applisd uniess otherwise menticned:

Cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with banks including murabaha deposits with less than three
months maturity from the date of acquisition.

Murabaha deposits

Murabaha deposits, with original maturity of more than three months, are initially recognised in the statement of financial
position at fair value and sre subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective inferest method, less any impairement
in value, whereas deposits with maturities not exceeding three months are reported under cash and cash equivalents.

Premiums and reinsnrers' receivable - net

Premiums receivable are stated at gross written premiums receivable from insurance contracts, less an allowance for any
wncollectible atounts, Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable are recognised when due and measured on initial

recognition at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The carrying value of receivable is reviewed for
impairment and whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, the

impairment loss is recorded in “General and administrative expenses” in the statement of income. Receivable balances are
derecognised when the Company no longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the receivable balance, which is
normally the case when the receivable balance is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the balance are passed through to
an independent third party. Receivable balances are disclosed in note 6 fall under the scope of IFRS-4 "Insurance Contract”.

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other costs directly and indirectly related to the acquisition and renewal of insurance contracts are
deferred and amortized over the terms of the Insurance contracts to which they relate as premiums are eamed. Amortization
is recorded in the statement of income, as policy acquisition costs.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected patiern of consumption of fufure economic benefits embodied in the
assel ate accounted for by changing the amortization period and are treated as a change in accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each financial reporting date or mare frequently when an indication of impairment
arises. When the recoverable amounts are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
income. Deferred policy acquisition cost is also considered in the Hability adequacy test for each financial reporting period.

Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurancs
contracts liabilities net of related deferred policy acquisition costs. In performing these tests management uses current best
estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses. Any deficiency in the carrying
amounts is immediately charged to the statement of income by establishing a provision for losses arising from liability
adequacy lests accordingly. Where the liability adequacy test requires the adoption of new best estimate’s assumptions,
such assumptions (without margins for adverse deviation) are used for the subsequent measurement of these liabilities.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognized in the Company’s financial statements when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are
ineluded in the inltial measurement of the Company’s financial assets except in case of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Company's financial assets include receivables, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale invesiments.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investinents and other financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: loans and receivables, available-for-sale and held to
maturity financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financis] assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

a. Loans and receivables are non-derivalive financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. After initial recognition, loans and receivables are
subsequentiy measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment and are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

b. Available-for-sale investments (“AFS”) are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held to maturity investment or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
carrying amount of the AFS financial asset are recognized in other comprehensive income. AFS equity investment -
that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.’

¢. Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL™) are non-derivative financial assets that are held for trading. All
derivatives {except those designated hedging instruments) and financial assets acquired or held for the purpose of
selling in the short term or for which there is a recent pattern of short-term profit taking are held for trading,

d. Held-to-mafurity investments are investments which have fixed or determinable payments that the Compary has
the positive intenticn and ability to hold to maturity are subsequently measured at amortized cost, less provision for
impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by teking into account any discount or premium on acquisition.
Any gain or loss on such investments is recognized in the statements of income when the investment is derecognized
or impaired.

Impairment and un-colleciability of financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include:
- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;
_~ A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments; ‘
- It becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization;
- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
- Observable data indicating that there is 2 measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the Company, including:
» adverse changes in the payment status of issuers or debtors in the Company; ot
= pational or local economic conditions at the country of the issuers that comelate with defaults on the assets;

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset exists, the impairment is determined as follows:

- For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the significant or prolong decline in the fair value of the financial asset.
- For assets carried at amortized cost, impairment is based on estimated future cash flows that are discounted at the
ariginal effective commission rate,

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (confinued)

Impairment and un-collectibility of financial assets (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, the Company assesses individually whether there is an
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence may include indjcations that the borrower is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in special commission income or principal payments, the probability that it will
enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in economic conditions that correlate with defaults. However, the
amount recorded for fmpairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement of income and
statement of comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the
increase can be abjectively related to credit event occurring after the impairment loss wa$ recognized in the statement of
income and statement of comprehensive income, the impajrment loss is reversed through the statement of income and
statement of comprehensive income.

For equity investments held as available-for-sele, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below its cost represents
objective evidence of impairment. The impairment loss cannot be reversed through statement of income as long as the asset
continues o be recognised ie. eny increase in fair value after impairment has been recorded can only be recognised in
ather comprehensive income. On derecognition, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is included in the statement of income under “Realized gain / (loss) on invesiments available for sale investments.

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgement. A pericd of 12 months or lenger is
considered to be prolonged and a decline of 30% from original cost is considered significant as per Company policy. In
making this judgement, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt instrument is impaired, the Company considers the factors such
as market’s assessment of creditwerthiness as reflected in the bond yields, rating agencies’ assessment of creditworthiness,
country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuancs and probability of debt being restructured, resulting in
holders suffering losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness. The amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investrment previously recognised in the statement of income and statement of comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition

Finaneial lizbilities are recognized in the Company’s financial statements when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial iiabilities are initéally recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are
included in the initial measurement of the Company’s financial liabilities. ‘

Classification and subsegiuent measurement

Since the Company does not have financial labilities classifled at Fair value through Profit or loss, all financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognized on an
effective yield basis.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company no longer controls the contractual rights that
comprise the financial instrument, which is normally the case when the instrument is sold, or all the cash flows attributablea
to the instrument are passed through to an independent third party.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle an a net basis,
or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense will not be offset in the statements of
income and comprehensive income unless required or permitted by an accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically
disclosed in the aceounting policies of the Company.

Fair values : :
The fair value of financial assets that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities, at the close of business on the financial reporting date. If
quoted marke? prices are not available, reference is made to broker or dealer price quotations,

For financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques
inciude using recent arm's-length transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same and/or discounted cash flow analysis. For discounted cash flow techniques, estimated fiture cash
flows are based on management's best estimates and the discount rate used is a market related rate for similar assets.

Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenses not yet ificurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are initially recorded as dysets and
measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are charged to statermnents of income &s they are consumed or
expire with the passage of time.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, Subsequent costs are

included in the assel’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that

future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the financial period in which they
- are incurred. The cost of other items of property and equipment is depreciated on the straight line method to allocate the

cost aver estimated useful lives, as follows:

. Years
Leasehold improvernents . Shorter of 3 or the relevant lease term
Furniture and fittings 10
Computer and office equipment 3-5
Vehicles k!

The assets’ residual values, depreciation and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
The carrying values of these assets are reviewed for impairment when event or changes in eircumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in
“Other income” in the statement of income. ‘

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress includes property that is being developed for future use. When comrmissioned, capital work-in-
progress will be transferred to the respective category within property and equipment, and depreciated in accordance with
the Company’s policy: ' :

Intangibles assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Amortization is provided over the
estimated useful lives of the applicable intangible assets using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives of the
intangible asset are between 3 to 5 years.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Statutory deposit
The statutory deposit, which is equal to 10% of the Company’s paid up capital, consisted mainly of murabaha deposit
maintained at a local bank in compliance with SAMA requirement.

Accrued and other liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services, whether billed by

the supplier or not.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive} arising from & past event, and the
costs to settle the obligation are both probable and can be measured reliably.

Employees' end-of-service benefits

The Company operates an end-of-service benefit plan for its employees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor Laws.
Accruals are made at the present value of expected future payments in respect of services provided by the employees up o
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit methed. Consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service, Expected fiture payments are discounted using
market yields at the end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and currencies that match, as
closely as possible, the estimated fiture cash outflows. The benefit payments obligation is discharged as and when it falls
due. Remeasurements (actuarial gains/ losses) as & result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits, include leave pay and airfare, are current liabilities included in accrued expenses, measured
-at the undiscounted amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement,

Employees' end-of-service benefits
The Company pays retirement contributions for its Saudi Arabian employees to the General Organization for Social
Insurance. This represents a state-owned defined contribution plan. The payments made are expensed as incurrad.

Zakat and tax

In accordance with the regulations of the General Authotity for Zakat and Tax ("GAZT"), the Company is subject to zakat
attributable to the Saudi shareholders and to income tax attributable to the foreign shareholders. Provision for zakat and
income tax is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Additional amounts payable, if any, at the finalization of final
assessments are accounted for when such amounts are determined. Zakat is computed on the Saudi shareholders' share of
equity and/ or net inceme using the basis defined under the regulations of GAZT, Income tax is computed on the foreign
shareholders' share of net incormne for the year.

The Company withhelds taxes on certain transactions with non-resident parties, including dividend payments to foreign
shareholders, in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as required under Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law. Withholding taxes paid
on hehalf of non-resident parties, which are not recoverable from such parties, are expensed.

Statutory reserve ‘ )
In accordance with the Compeny®s by-laws, the Company shall allocate 20% of its retained earnings each year to the
statutory reserve until it has built up a reserve equat to the share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution.

Trade date acconnting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized/derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular way purchases or sales sre purchases or sales of {financial assets
that require settlement of assets within the time frame generelly established by regulaticn or convention in the market place.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Iosurance contracts

The Company issues insurance consracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts where the
insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified
uncertain futire event adversely affects the policyholder, As a general puideline, the Company defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% more
than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

Revenue Recognition

Recogrition of premium and commission revenue

Premiums and commission are recorded in the statement of income based on straight line methed over the insurance policy
coverage period except for long term polices (engineering and marine).

Unearned premiums are calculated on a straight line method aver the insurance policy coverage except for:
- Marine - Last three months premium at a reporting date is considered as unearned,
- Engineering - as per the guidelines provided by SAMA, pre-defined calculation for risks undertaken that extend beyond

a single year. In accordance with this calculation, lower premiums are eared in the first year which gradually increases
towards the end of the tenure of the policy; and

Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written relating to the unexpired period of coverage. The change in
the provision for unearned premtum is taken to the siatement of income in the same order that revenue is recognised over
the period of risk,

Uneamned comrission on outwards reinsurance contracts are deferred and amostized over the terms of the insurance
contracts to which they relate. Amortization is recorded in the statement of income.

Investment income
Investment income classified under held-to~maturity investments and murabaha deposits are accounted for on an effective
interest basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income, if any, on equity instruments classified under available-for-sale investments is recognized when the right
to receive payment is established.

Claims
Claims consist of amounts payable to contract holders and third parties and related loss adjustment expenses, net of salvage
and other recoveries.

Gross outstanding claims comprise gross estimated cost of claims incurred but not seitled at the reporting date together
with related claims handling costs, whether reported or not. Provisions for reported claims not paid as of the financial
reporting date are made on the basis of individual case estimates.

In addition, a provision based on management’s judgment and the Company’s prior experience is maintained for the cost of

settling TBNR as of financial reporting date. The ultimate liability may be in excess of or less than the amount provided.
Any difference between the provisions at the reporting date and settlements and provisions in the following year is
included in the statement of income for that year.

The cutstanding claims are showrn on a gross basis and the related share of the reinsurers is shown separately.

Further, the Company does not discount its liabilities tor unpaid claims as substantially all claims are expected to be paid
within one year of the financial reporting date.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Salvage and subrogation reimbursement

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) assets acquired in settling a claim (for example,
satvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example,
subrogation). Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding claims
liability. The allowance is the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the asset.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding claims liability.
The allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the third party.

Reinsurance contracts ceded

Reinsurance contracts are contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers during the normal course of business
under which the Company is compensated for logses on insurance contracts issued. Such reinsurance arrangements provide
for greater diversification of business, allows management to control exposure to potential losses arising from large risks,
and provide additional capaclty for growth. Reinsurance is distributed between treaty, facultative, stop loss and excess of
loss reinsurance contract. :

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts ceded are recogrized as reinsurance assets in
the insurance operations’ assets. These assets consist of balances due from reinsurers on settlement of claims and other
receivables such as profit eommissions and reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims that are deperndent on the expecied
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contract. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers
are recognized consistently with the amounts associated with the underlying insurance contracts and in accordance with the
terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets or liahilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are
extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to another party.

At each financial reperting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that a reinsurance asset may be
impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Company makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where
the carrying amount of a reinsurance asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount, Impairment is recognized in the statement of income.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Comparny from its obligations to policyholders. Premiums and claims on
assumed reinsurance are recognized as income and expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were
considered direct business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business.

Expense recognition

Expenses are recognized in statements of income when decrease in future economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset
or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably, Expenses are recognized in statements of income on
the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on the basis of
systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over the accounting peried.
Expenses in the statement of income are presented using the nature of expense method.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested ennually for impairment, Assets that
are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss s recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level far which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liabitity except for:
* Leases of low value assets; and

« Leases with a term of 12 months or less.

Lease liabilitiss are measured at the present value of the contractual. payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the
discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily
determinable, in which case the.Company’s incremental commission rate on commencement of the lease is used. Variable
lease payments are only incleded in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an index or rate, In such cases,
the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:

» amcunts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;

« the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Company if it is reasonable certain to assess
that option;

» any penaliies payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the basis of
termination option being exercised.

Right of use assets are initiaily measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received, and
increased for:
= lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;
« initial direct costs incurred; and
+ the amount of any provision recognised where the Company is contractually required to dismantle, remove or
restore the leased asset (typically leasehold dilapidations. '

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on the balance '
outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the
lease terrn.

When the Company revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a
lessee extension or fermination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease lability to reflect the
payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted at the same discoumi rate that applied on lease

commencement. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of
the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued})

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's sharehalders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in
the pericd in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders.

Foreign currencies - :

Transactions in foreign cutrencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals at the exchange rale prevailing at the date of the

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Saudi Riyals a the rate of
exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. All differences are taken to the statements of income. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as
at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. '

Operating Segments ‘

A segment is a distingnishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or services (a business
segment), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of other segments. For management purposes,
the Company is organized into business units based on products and services and has eight reportable operating segments
and one non-operating reportable segment as follows:

» Medical insurance provides health care cover to policyholders.

« Motor Insurance provides coverage against losses and liability related to motor vehicles, excluding transport
insueance,

+ Fire and burglary insurance provides coverage against fire, and any other insurance included under this class

of insurance.
» Marine Insurance provides cover for Marine Cargo in transit and ships against marine perils.
- Engineering Insurance provides coverage for loss or damage to construction works or erection and installation

of plant & machinery.

» Public liability insurance provides cover for legal liability of the insured against third parties arising out of
premises, business aperations or projects handled.

» General accident insurance provides coverage against accidental death to individual and group of parties
under Personal Accident Insurance.

+ Others provide coverage for workmen compensation,

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating tesources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the chief executive officer that makes strategic decisions.

Shareholders’ Funds is a non-operating segment. Income earned from murabaha deposits is its only revenue generating
activity. Certain direet operating expenses and other overhead expenses are allocated to this segment on an appropriate
basis. '

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in certain respecis, is measured differently from profit or
loss in the financial statements.

No inter-sagment transactions occurred during the year. 1f any transaction were to oceur, transfer prices between aperating
segments are sét on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. Segment income, expense
and results will then include those transfers between operating segments which will then be eliminated at the level of
financial statements of the Company. As the Conpany carries out its activities entirely in the Kingdom of Sandi Arabia,
reporiing is provided by operating segments only.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(All amorents in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash ond cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following;

2020 201%
Cash in banks 49,984,698 44,175,158
Cash on hand 15,029 15,087

49,999,727 44,190,245

Cash in banks are placed with eounterparties with sound credit ratings under Standard and Poor's and Moody’s ratings methodology.

5 MURABAHA DEPOSITS

Murabaha deposits represents deposits with local banks that have investment grade credit ralings and have an original maturity of more than thres
moanths from date of acquisition. The depaosits earn commission at rate ranging from 1.2% to 3.4% (31 December 201%: 2% to 3.4%) per annum.

6 PREMIUMS AND REINSURERS' RECEIVABLE - NET

Receivables comprise amounts due from the following:

2020 2019
Policyholders 184,863,153 141,597,978
Brokers and agents : 63,219,101 77,068,183
Related parties (note 20) 58,876,953 64085622
Receivables from reinsurers 13,622,811 5,800,726
. . 320,582,018 288 553,509

Less:
Provision for doubtful receivables - policyholders (37,503,691)  (34,235,269)
Provision for doubtful receivables - brokers and agents (14,945,722)  (14,589,280)
Provision for doubtful receivables - related parties (19,632,503)  (20,053,521)
Provision for doubtful receivables - receivables from reinsurers (2,627,906) (1,798,397)

(74,709,822) __ (70,676,467) !
245372196 __ 217877042

As at 31 December, the aging of receivables is as follows:

{ Past due but not impaired [ Past due and impaired I
Less than 30 More than
Total days 31-60days 61 -90days 91 - 180 days 181§ - 360 days 360 days
i
Policyholders 184,863,153 38,770,39¢ 50,017,896 26722331 11,895,767 17,409,218 40,047,544 ;
Brokers and agents 63,219,101 30,843,089 2,338,036 3,313,300 5,604,435 3,864,287 17,255,954
Related parties 58,876,953 16,060,786 2,189,954 3,535,818 4,840,659 10,561,796 21,687,940
Receivables from reinsurers 13,622,811 1,501,768 1,009,182 3,162,55% 2201,188 2,590,854 3,157,260
2020 320,582,018 87,176,034 55,555,068 36,734,014 24,592,149 34,426,155 82,148,698
Policyholders 141,597,978 28,884,901 17,916,758 27,095,571 18,030,843 21,941,377 27,728,528
Brokers and agents 77,068,183 9,546,558 18,427,502 15,033,772 9,603,813 12,570,920 11,885,618
Related parties 64,086,622 4,110,205 10,968,014 1,913,362 11818754 16,353,014 18,923,273 . :
Receivables from reinsurers 5,800,726 1,030,562 81,027 140,829 662 466 1,716,899 2,168,943 i
2019 288,553,509 43,572226 47393301 44,183.534 40115876 52582210 60,706,362 T
The movement in the provision for doubtful receivables is as follows: 2026 2019
Balance at January | 70,676,467 50,856,930
Provision made during the year 4,033,355 19,819,537
Balance at December 31 74,709,822 70,676,467

The Company only enfers into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Companys policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivables are monitored on an ongoing :
basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure to bad debts.

The five largest customers accounts for 27% of the receivable as a1 31 December 2020 (31 Decemnber 2019: 23%).
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
{All amounts in Soudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

7  MOVEMENT IN OUTSTANDING CLAIMS, UNEARNED PREMIUMS, UNEARNED REINSURANCE

COMMISSION AND DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS (continued)

d)  Deferred policy acquisition costs

2020 2019
Balance at January 1 16,877,051 21,311,787
Incurred during the year 59,818,818 58,815,836
Amortized during the year {58,236,314) (63,250,572)
Balance at December 31 18,459,055 16,877,051
8 INVESTMENTS
(a) Available-for-sale investments
_ 2020 2019
Balance at January 1 1,923,080 7,399,590
Transfer of fair value reserve on disposal of available-for-sale investment - (789,654)
Realised gain on disposal of available-for-sale investment - 1,269,597
Disposal during the year : - (5,956,853)

Balance at December 31 -

1,923,080 . 1523080

Available-for-sale investment represents SR 1.9 million in respect of the Company’s share in the capital of Najm for

Instrance Services Company (“Najm™) which represents a 3.85% capital holding in Najm.

(b) Fair value through profit or loss investments

2020 2019
Balance at January 1 90,671,601 -
Acquired during the year ' - 82,311,808
Unrealized {loss)/gain from change in fair value {643,061} 8,359,793
Balance at December 31 90,028,540 50,671,601

As at 31 December 2020, Fair value through profit or loss investments represents SR 90 million in respect of qouted equity
intruments of Saudi Arabian Oil Company.

(c) Held-to-maturity investment

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s investment in Tslamic bonds (*Sukuk™), issued by a local bank having a credit
rating of "AA”, amounted to SR 35 million (31 December 2019: SR 10 million) comprising of 35 Sukuk (31 December
2019: 10 Sukuk) denominated at Saudi Riyals 1 million each and a margin equivalent to § month SIBOR plus 195 basis
points (31 December 2019: 6 ronth SIBOR plus 195 basis points), having maturity date of 27 May 2025.

2020 - 2019
Balance at January 1 10,192,936 10,214,914
Additions 25,000,000 -
Amortisation, net 338,721 (21,978)

Balance af December 31 35,531,657 10,192,936

9 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 2020 2019

Recoverable expenses from reinsurers 31,008,578 29,635,232
Guarantee deposits 3,403,098 3,127,960
Accrued income from manafeth fund 8,237,902 2,333,497
Medical insurance 611,323 [,966,679
Employees’ receivables 3,205,585 2,844,863
Accrued interest income from murabaha deposits 4,795,556 3,615,766
Excess of loss premium 1,053,090 3,041,402

Advance for IT operational expenses : 2,437,851 1,964,001
Rentals 588,200 311,326
Others ’ 2,968,717 3,789,262

58,309,500 52,629,988
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK. COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(ALl amounts In Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

11  STATUTORY DEPOSIT

Statutory deposit represents 10% of the paid up share capital which is maintained in accordance with the Law on
Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies implemented in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The statutory deposit
cannot be withdrawn without the consent of SAMA. The statutory depasit is placed with a counterparty having investment
grade credit rating. Return on statutory deposit is shown as an asset and liability in the statement of financial position.

12 ACCRUED EXFENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2020 2019
Payable to hospitals 936,954 1,339,678
- Commission payabls 24,482,391 25,322,844
Amounts due to related parties {note 20) 10,295,082 2,049,672
Value Added Tax payable . 11,839,610 1,995,644 |
Inspection and supervision fees : 3,530,735 948,713 :
Accrued salaries and employees’ benefits 45,332 41,884 :
Surveyors payable . : 1,186,402 730,505
Payable {0 workshops 652,140 2,960,390 ,
Accrued professional fees Lo 13327 84,210 i
Others 11,934,524 7,670,191

64,916,997 43,143,731

13  SURPLUS DISTRIBUTION PAYABLE

The movement in Surplus distriBuiion payable during the year is as follows:

: 2020 2019 -
Opening surplus distribution payable as at | January - 7,729,845
Total income attributed to the insurance operations during the year 5577,137 ' -
Surplus paid to policy holders . (7,729,845)
Closing surplus distribution payable as at 31 December 5,577,137 -

14 EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS

The Company operates a defined benefit plan for its employees based on the prevalling Saudi Labor Law. Accruals are
made in accordance with the actuarial valuation under the projected unit credit method while the benefit payments
obligation is discharged as and when it falls due. The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position and
movement in the obligation during the year based on its present value are as follows:

. 2020 2019
Present value of defined berefit obligation 18,705,950 15,082,288
Movement of defined benefit obligation 2020 2019
Balance at January 1 15,082,288 14,876,000
Current service cost 3,704,750 3,365,858
Interest cost 553,140 682,267 !
Actuarial (loss)gains on remeasurement 1,438,651 (1,491,957
Payment of benefits during the year (2,072,879 (2,345,880)
Balance at December 31 ' 18,705,950 15,082,288 f
|
Principal actuarial assumptions 2020 2019
Valuation discount rate 32% 4%
Duration of the Liability (in Years) 9 85
Expected rate of increase in salary level across different age bands 5% -
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

14  EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS (continued)

The impact of changes in sensitivities on present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

2020 2019

Valuation discount rate

- Increase by 1% (1,142,941) (876,614)

- Decrease by 1% 1,316,605 1,004,758
Expected rate of increase in salary level across different age bands .

- Increase by 1% . 1,279,313 999,165

- Decrease by 1% (1,134,736) - (888,387)
Mortality rate

- Increase by 20% (3,225) (116)

- Decrease by 20% : ' 3,231 115
Employee turnover

- Increase by 20% . (481,876} (192,925)

- Decrease by 20% . . 521,122 161,108

15- PROVISION FOR ZAKAT
a) Charge for the year
The zakat payable by the Company has been calculated in accordance with the zakat regulations in Saudi Arabia.

The zakat provision for the year is based on the following:

2020 2019
Sharcholders’® equity and opening provisions 394,483,736 359,563,535
Book value of long term assets and statutory deposit (40,545,434} (51,261,084)
353,938,302 308,302,451
Adjusted income for the year 56,510,338 21,809,456
Zakat base 410,448,640 330,111,907
Zakat due at 2.5% 10,261,216 8,252,798

The. difference between the financial and zakatable results is mainly due to provisions which are not allowed in the
calculation of zakatable income. The Company is not subject to income tax being fully owned by Saudi and GCC
shareholders.

b) Zakat payabie
The movement in zakat payable during the year were as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at beginning of the year 9,047,924 8,707,630
Charge for the year . 10,261,216 8,252,798
Payments during the year ' (8,791,559) {7,912,504)
Balance at end of the year 10,517,581 9,047,924

¢) Status of assessments

The Company has filed its zakat return for the financial years up to and including the year 2019 with the General Authority -

of Zakat and Tax (the "GAZT") and received the final zakat certificate from the GAZT.

The Company has received final assessments for the years 2008 through 2018 and settled with no additional zakat liability.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOFERATIVE mSUMCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK. COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuned)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(AU amounts in Seudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

16 SHARE CAPITAL
The authorized, issued and paid up capital of the Company was SR 300 million at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:

SR 300 million) consisting of 30 million sheres (31 December 2019: 30 million shares) of SR 10 each. Shareholding
structure of the Company is as below:

2020 2019
Authorised, issued and paid up Authorised, issued and paid up
No. of Shares SR00 No. of Shares SR’000
Saudi Arabian Insurance Company B.S.C 9,000,000 90,000,000 9,000,000 90,000,000
Others 21,000,000 210,000,000 21,000,000 210,000,000

30,000,090 300,000,060 30,000,000 300,000,000 -

17 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year have been calculated by dividing the total net income for the year by the
weighted average number of shares in issue throughout the year. :

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the weighted average number of shares are as follpws:

2020 2019
Basic and diluted incomef({loss) per share L58 (0.35)
Weighted average number of shares in issue throughout the year (in thousands) 30,000 30,000

There are no diluted potential shares during the year 2020 and 2019.
18 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Company's By-Laws and in compliance with Article 70{Z)(g) of the Insurance Implementing
Regulations issued by SAMA, the Company is required to allocate 20% of its net income for the year to.the statutory
seserve until it equals the value of share capital, Such transfer is only made at year end. The stafutory reserve is not
available for distribution to shareholders until liquidation of the Company.

i9 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2020 2019
Salaries and benefits 82,473,472 86,630,253
IT operational expenses 5,166,442 5,275,060
Depreciation (note 10) 2,098,099 . 2,409,980
Amortisation (note 10) i 1,876,845 1,348,700
Rent 2,507,271 2,829,959
Communications 1,875,466 1,415,855
Audii fees 585,167 570,000
Legal and professional fees 2,351,520 2,450,707
Printing and stationery i 180,654 463,259
Repairs and maintenance 323,303 429 981
Travel 234,832 650,610
Collectors’ fees 75,625 328,273
Withholding tax 879,805 36,471
Subscription fees 343,370 323,938
Others 4,677,322 4,519,324

105,749,193 109,682,370
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Al amounts in Saudi Rivals uniess otherwise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT
The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated.by management are summarized below:

Risk Governance
The Company’s risk govemnance is manifested in a set of established policies, procedures and conirols which uses the
existing organizational structure to meet strategic targets. The Company’s philosophy revolves on willing and
knowledgeable risk acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and sirategic plan approved by the Board of Directors.
The Company is exposed to insurance risk, reinsurance risk, special commission rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
currency risk, market price risk, capital management regulatory framework risk and operational risk.

a. Risk management structure - a cohesive organizational structure is sstablished within the Company in order to

identify, assess, monitor and control risks.

b. Board of directors - the apex of tisk governance is the centralized oversight of the Board of Directors providing
direction and the necessary approvals of strategies and policies in order to achieve defined corporate goals.

¢. Senfor management - the senior management is responsible for the day to day operations towards achieving the
strategic goals within the Company’s pre-defined risk appetite.

a) Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments ot the timing
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity. of claims, actual benefits paid and
subsequent development of long—term claims, Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves
are available to cover these liabilities.

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Reinsurance ceded is placed on both a
proportional and non—proportional basis. The majority of proportional reinsurance is quota—share reinsurance which is
taken out to reduce the overall exposure of the Company to certain ¢lasses of business. Non—propartional reinsurance is
primarily excess—of-loss reinsurance designed to mitigate the Company’s net exposure to catastrophe losses. Retention
limits for the excess-of-loss reinsurance vary by product line and territory.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in

accordance with the reinsurance contracts. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its

direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit expesure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that

any reinsurer is ubable to meat its obligations assumed under such reinsurance arrangements. The Company’s placement of

reinsurance is diversified such thet it is neither dependent on a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company
" substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract.

Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natural disasters, flocd, environmental and
economical, atmospheric disturbances, concentration of risks, civil riots etc. The Company manages these risk through the
measures described above, The Company has limited its risk by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts as
well as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events (&.g., hurricanes, earthquakes
and flood damage). The purpose of these underwriting and reinsurance strategies is to limit exposure to catastrophes based
on the Company’s risk appetite as decided by management. The Board may decide to increase or decrease the maximum
toferances based on market conditions and other factors.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 202¢
(All amounts in Saudt Riyals unless otherwise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a) Insurance risk (continued)

Concentration of insurance risk
The Company monitors cencentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The major concentration lies in
medical and motor segment.

The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location.
For flood or earthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location, For fire and property risk a particular building
and neighboring buildings, which couid be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location.
Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyape are considered as a single risk while assessing
concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentration of exposures fo individual and cumulative insurance risks
and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures o levels acceptable to the Company,

Since the Company operates majorly in Saudi Arabia, all the insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi Arabia.

Sources of uncertainty in estimaiion of future claim payments

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date relates to valuation of outstanding
claims, whether reported or not, and includes expected claims setilement costs. The principal assumption underlying the
‘liability estimates is that the Company’s future claims development will follow a similar patiern o past claims development
experience. This includes asswmptions in respect of average claim costs, claim handling costs, claim inflation factors and
claim numbers for each accident ysar, Additional qualitative judgements are used to assess the extent to which past trends
may nct apply inthe future, for example: one—off occurrence, changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming,
economic conditions, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims handling procedures.
Judgement is further used to assess the sxtent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government
legislation affect the estimates. Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to
policyholders arfsing from claims made under insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions
about several factors involving varying and possibly sipnificant degress of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may
- differ from management’s estimates resulting in future changes in estimated Kabilities. Qualitative judgments are used to
assess the- extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes in market
factors such as public attitude to claiming 2nd economic conditions. Judgment is further used to assess the extent to which
external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the estimates.

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the statement of financial
position date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the statement of financial
position date.

Process used to decide on assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral
reasonable estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict
with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is
assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due regard to claim circumstances, information available from surveyors and
historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new
information is available.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of setiling
¢claims already notified to the Company, in which case information about the claim event is availabie. The estimation
process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs.

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection techniques,
such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(All antounis in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a) Insurance risk (centinued)
Process used to decide on assumptions {continued)

The tain assumption underlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development experience can be used to
project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. As such, these methads extrapolate the development of
paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim and claim numbers based on the abserved development of earlier years
and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further
analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types, Large claims are usually separately
addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in order to reflect
their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss
ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical claims development data on which the projections
are based. Additional qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g.,
to reflect one-off occurrences, changes in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic
conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix,
policy features and claims handling procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the
likely outcomne from the range of possible outcomes, taking account of all the uncertainties involved,

The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (unearned premium reserve
and premium deficiency reserve in result of lability adequacy test) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims
and expenses likely to occur on the unexpired policies as at the statement of finencial position date. The expected: future
liability is determined nsing estimates and assumptions based on the experience during the expired period of the contracts
and expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company believes that the claim fiabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate.
However, these amounts are nat certain: and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the financial
statements. The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions. It has not been possible to quantify the
sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the sstimation process.

A hypothetical 5% change in the claim ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact net underwriting income/(loss) as follows:

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in
Change in in met underwriting
assumptions lHabilities surplus
Ultimate loss ratio
2020 : ] +- 5% 26,419,888 26,419,888
2019 . +- 5% 31,423.971 31,423,971

b) Reinsurance risk
In order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters
into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposes.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition
of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic
characteristics of the reinsurers.

Reinsurers are selected using the tollowing parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
criteria may be summarized as follows:

50




SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Al amounis in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

b} Reinsurance risk (continued)
- Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (e.g. S&P) that is not lower than BBB or equivalent
- Reputation of particular reinsurance companics
- Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer.

Furthermore, the financial strength and managerial and technica! expertise ag well as historical performance of the
reinsurers, wherever applicable, are thoroughly reviewed by the Company end agreed to pre-set requirements of the
Company's Board of Directors before approving them for exchange of reinsurance business. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, there is no significant concentration of reinsurance balances.

Reinsurance ceded consracts do not relisve the Company from its obligations to policyhotders and as a result the Company
remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to mest the obligations
under the reinsurance sgreements,

¢) Commission rate risk

Commission rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in commission rates will affect future profitability or the fair
velues of financial instruments. The Company is exposed to commission rate risk on its murabaha deposits and investment
in Sukuk.

The Company have murabaha deposits and investment in Sukuk, with the exception of restricted deposits which are
required to be maintained in accordance with regulations in Saudi Arabia on which the Company does not earn any
commission. Management limits commission rate risk by monitoring changes in commission rates in the currencies in
which its deposits are denominated. The Company had no deposits in currencies ather than Saudi Riyal.

The following information demonstrates the sensitivity of statement of income te possible changes in commission rates,

with all other variables held constani.
2020 2019

Increase/(decreass) in commission rates by 100 basis points 3,419,163 3,930,052

d4) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial instruments held by the Company, the maximum credit risk exposure to the
Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company®s exposure to credit risk:

a. To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers. Accordingly, as a pre-requisite, the parties with whom reinsurance is effected are required
to have a minimum acceptable security rating level affirming their financial strength.

b. The Company seeks to manage its credit risk with respect to .customers by setting credit limits for individual
customers and by monitoring outstanding receivables.

¢. Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with local banks appreved by the management. Accordingly, as a pre-
requisite, the bank with whom cash and cash equivalents are maintained is required to have a minimum acceptable
security rating level affirming its financial strength.

The Company does not have an internal credit ratings assessment process, and accordingly, amounts which are neither past
due nor impaired, in respect of client balances, are from individuals and unrated corporate counter parties. Balances due
from reinsurers are with countetparties who have investment grade credit ratings issued by external rating agencies.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Ali amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

d) Credit risk (continued)

" The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents-

Mutrabaha deposits

Premiums and reinsurers' receivable - net
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims and reserves
Reinsurers' share of claims incurred but not reported
Available-for-sale investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Statutory deposit

Other assets

Credit quality

The credit quality of the financial assets is as follows:
Credit guality * Credit Rating
Cash and cash equivalents

Very strong Ana- A2
Satisfactory A3 -Baa3
Unrated Unrated
Murabaha deposits

Very strong . Aaa- A2
Satisfactory A3 -Baa)
Unrated Unrated
Investments

Very strong Aaa- A2
Satisfactory A3 - Baa3
Unrated Unrated

* Credit rating source: Moody's

AH other financial assets are unrated.

2019

2020
49,999,727 44,190,245
341,916,296 393,005,161
245,872,196 217,877,042
339,166,728 364,623,633
43,367,257 41,470,036
1,923,080 1,923,080
35,531,657 10,192,936
30,000,000 30,000,000
53,213,489 44,864,741

1,140,990,430

1,148,146,874

2020 2019
45,894,903 38,855,030 .
4,089,795 5,320,128
15,029 15,087
49,999,727 44,190,245
246,474,362 378,005,161
95,441,934 15,000,000
341,916,296 393,005,161
125,560,197 100,864,537
1,523,080 1,923,080
127,483,277 102,787,617

Very strong quality: Capitalization, earnings, financial strength, liquidity, management, market reputation and repayment

ability are excellent.

Satisfactory quality: Require regular monitoring due to financial risk factors. Ability to repay remains at a satisfactory

level.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Al amounts in Saudl Riyals unless otherwise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)}

B Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Management believes that there is minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuation, as the majority of
monetary assets and liabilities are in currencies linked to the Saudi Riyals.

B)  Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of ﬁmzre cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instrument traded in the merket.

The Company has investment in unquoted equity instruments carried at cost, where the impact of changes in equity price
will only be reflected when the instrument is sold or deerned to be impaired and then the statement of changes in equity will
be impacted.

- hy Capital management .
Objectives are set by the Company to maintain heelthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a
regular basis. Adjustments to current capital levels are made in light of changes in market conditions and risk
characteristics of the Company’s activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it is able to continue as going concern end comply with the regulators’
capital requirements of the markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the return to stakeholders through
the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable io
equity holders comprising paid share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

As per guidelines laid out by SAMA in Article 66 of the Implementing Insurance Regulations detailing the solvengy margin
required to be maintained, the Company shall maintain solvency margin equivalent te the highest of the following three
methads as per SAMA Tmplementing Regulations:

+  Minimum Capital Requirement of SR 100 million
+  Premium Solvency Margin
*  Claims Solvency Margin

. The Company is in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements with sound solvency margin. The capital
structure of the Company as at 31 December 2020 consists of paid-up share capital of SR 300 million, statutory resetves of
SR 29.5 million and retained eaning of SR 27 million (31 December 2019: paid-up share capital of SR 300 million,
statutory reserves of SR 20 million and accemulated losses of SR 10.9 million) in tie statement of financial position.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Company has fully complied with the exterally imposed capital requirements
during the reported financial period.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(AN armounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)
23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

i)  Regulatory framework risk

The operations of the Company are subject to local regulatory requirements in Saudi Arabia. Such regulations not only
prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions e.g. capital adequacy to
minimize the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companies and to enable them to meet unforeseen
liabilities as these arise. The Company is compliant of minimum capital adequacy prescribed by the regulator.

jy  Operational Risk

QOperational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from & wide variety of causes associated with the processes,
technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company or externally at
the Company’s service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behavior.
Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.

The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its
reputation with achieving its investment. objective of generating returns for investors. The primery responsibility for the
development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Directors, This responsibility
encompasses the controls in the following areas:

- Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

- Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- Docurmentation of controls and procedures;

- Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of contrels and
procedures to address the risks identified;

- Ethical and business standards; and

- Risk mitigation policies and procedures.

Senior Management ensures that the Company's staff has adequatc training and experience and fosters effective
communication related to operational risk management.

24 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transactions
take place either:

- in the accessible principal market for the asset or liabliity, or
- in the accessible principal market, in the most advantagous accessible marketfor the asset or liability

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalent, accrual and other liabilities an dother financial assets and
liabiiities approximate their carrying amounts largely duye to the short tetm maturities of these instruments.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in an active market (that are unadjusted) for identical assets or Habilities,

Level 2: Valuation techniques (for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable), and

Level 3: Valuation technigues (for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement- is
unobservable).

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 -fair value
measurements, and o transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements.
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24 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

) Carrying amounts and fair value

The following table summarizes the financial assets recorded at fair value as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 by level of the
fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 December 2020 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Available-for-sale investments © 1,923,080 - - ' 1,923,080 1,923,080
FVTPL investments 90,028,540 90,028,540 - - 90,028,540

‘ 91,951,620 90,028,540 - 1,923,080 _ 91,951,620
As at 31 December 2019 Carrying value Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets: :
Available-for-sale investments 1,923,080 - - 1,923,080 1,923,080
FYTPL investments 90,671,601 90,671,601 - - 90,671,601

92,594,681 90,671,601 - 1,923,080 92,594,681

The fzir values of other financial assets and liabilities, not included in the table above, are not materially different from the
carrying values included in the financial statements.

b) Measurement of Fair values

Available-for-sale investment represents ungueted securities amounted to SR 1.9 million in respest of the Company’s share
ia the capital of Najm. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the investment has not been measured at fair value
in the absence of active market or other means of measuring their fair value reliably. However, the management believes
that there is no major difference between the carrying value and fair valus of the investment.

25 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

CONTINGENCIES

a4, Legal proceedings and regulations

The Company operates in the insurance industry and is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of business. While
it is not practicable to forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings, management
does not believe that such proceedings (including litigations) will have a material effect on its results and financial position.

The Company filed legal cases against various counter-parties claiming SR 18 million (31 December 2019: SR 27 million)
and on the other hand, various counter-parties filed legel cases against the Company claiming SR 65 million (31 December
2019: SR 67 million). ' : :

b. As at 31 December 2020, performance guarantees amounting to SR 3.4 million {2018: SR 3.13 million) were issued to
the customers on behalf of the Company. The Company pledged bank balances equivalent to the amount of performance
guarantees to the bank for obtaining such guarantees.

COMMITMENTS
¢. During 2020, the Company entered into an agreement for the construction of the commercial building on the land under
deed No. 2/214 located at the Salahuddin AL-Ayyubi Road, Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Tre Company is committed to half of the incurred capital expenditure for the acquisition of land and construction of the
building, and the transaction will be recognized as the development progresses and upon completion of the transfer of the
underlying right and obligations,

The estimated commitment as at balance sheet date but not recognized in the financial statement are as follows:

2020 2019
Acquisition of the Land 12,663,500 -
Construction of the Building 38,000,000 -

50,663,500
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(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK. COMPANY)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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26 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

26.1 Statement of financial position (continued)

Insurance OQperations Shareholders’ Operations Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

LIABILITIES
Policyholders' claims payable 21,607,449 23,231,651 - - 21,607,449 23,331,651
Accrued and other liabilities 64,916,997 43,143,731 - - 64,916,997 43,143,731
Surplus distribution payable 5,577,137 - - - 5,577,137 -
Reinsurance balances payable 53,730,084 93,268,021 - - 53,730,084 93,268,021
Unearned premiums 265,548,157 255,633,330 - - 265,548,157 255,633,330
Unearned reinsurance commission 6,759,142 6,714,158 - - 6,759,142 6,714,158
Qutstanding claims and reserves 385,850,240 428,202,293 - - 385,850,240 428,202,293
Claims incurred but not reported 117,468,630 122,763,884 - - 117,468,630 122,763,884
Accounts payable - - 1,445,922 1,407,835 1,445,922 1,407,836
Employees' end-of-service benefits . 18,705,950 15,082,288 - - 18,705,950 15,082,288
Provision for zakat - - 10,517,581 9,047,924 10,517,581 9,047,924
Accrued commission income payable to SAMA - - 2,799,639 2,363,024 2,799,639 2,363,024
TOTAL LIABILITIES 940,163,786 088,139,356 14,763,142 12,818,784 954,926,928 1,000,958,140
EQUITY .
Share capital - - 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000
Statutory reserve - - 29,473,371 20,008,901 29,473,371 20,008,901
Accumulated losses - - 26,981,720  (10,876,161) 26,981,720 (10,876,161}
Re-measurement reserve of end-of-service benefits - - 49,636 1,488,287 49,636 1,488,287
TOTAL EQUITY - - 356,504,727 310,621,027 336,504,727 310,621,027
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 940,163,786 088,139,356 371,267,869 323,439,811 1,311,431,655 1,311,579,167

Abave stated liabilities do not include "Due to sharekolders’ eperations” amounting to SR 20,778,132 (31 December 2019: 33,870,028) to be consistent with total liabilities presented in

the statement of financial position.
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26 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

26.2 Statement of income

Insurance Operations Shareholders' Operations Total
2020 2019 2020 201 2020 2019
REVENUES
Gross premiums written 795,037,966 834,341,165 - - 795,037,966 834,341,165
Reinsurance premiums ceded
- Local (54,518,400) (45,431,258) - - (54,518,400) (45,431,258)
- International (includes premium ceded through local broker) (170,236,024) (159,780,057) - - (170,236,024) (159,780,057)
- (224,754,424) (205,211,315) - - (224,754.424)  (205,211,315)
Excess of loss/ stop loss expenses
- Local (402,364) (757,883) - - (402,364) (757,883)
- International (36,896,403) (55,551,929) - - (36,8%6,403) (55,551,929)
(37,298,767) (56,309,812) - - (37,298,767) (56,309,812)
Net premiums written 532,984,775 572,820,038 - - 532,084,775 572,820,038
Movement in unearned premiums, net (4,587,025) 55,659,379 - - {4,587,025) 55,659,379
Net premiums earned 528,397,750 628,479,417 - - 528,397,750 628,479,417
Reinsurance commissions 31,057,481 26,686,974 - - 31,057,481 26,686,974
Other underwriting income 6,868,488 7,642,642 - - 6,868,488 7,642,642
NET REVENUES 566,323,719 662,809,033 - - 566,323,719 662,809,033
UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES ‘
Gross claims paid 446,868,497 646,925,036 - - 446,868,497 646,925,036
Reinsurers' share of claims paid (78,890,405) (84,800,191} - - (78,890,405) (84,800,191)
Net claims paid 367,978,092 562,124,845 - - 367,978,092 562,124,845
Movement in outstanding claims, net (24,087,623) (70,608,769) - - (24,087,623) (70,608,769
Net claims incurred 343,890,469 491,516,076 - - 343,890,469 491,516,076
Policy acquisition costs 58,236,814 03,250,572 - - 58,236,814 63,250,572
Inspection and supervision fees 6,907,784 7,215,553 - - 6,907,784 7,215,553
TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES 409,035,067 561,982,201 - - 409,035,067 561,982,201
NET UNDERWRITING INCOME 157,288,652 100,826,832 - - 157,288,652 100,826,832
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26 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

26.2 Statement of income (continued)

OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES)
[ncome from invesiments

Unrealized loss/{gain) from change in fair value of FVTPL investments

Income from murabaha deposits

Other income

Generzl and administrative expenses
Investments expenses

Provision for doubtful debts

TOTAL OTHER INCOME/{EXPENSES)
Total income/(loss) for the year

Total loss for the year attributable to the shareholders before zakat
Total loss for the year before zakat

Zakat charge for the year

Total loss for the year after zakat

Insurance Operations Shareholders' Operations Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
- 476,607 1,717,642 3,013,328 - 3,489,935 1,717,642
- - (643,061) 8,359,793 (643,061) 8,359,793
3,325,582 6,049,824 6,350,453 8,034,458 9,716,035 14,084,282
3,091,691 4,131,215 - - 3,091,691 4,131,215
(104,377,811}  (108,454,476) (1,371,382) (1,227.854) (105,749,193)  (109,682,370)
- - - {2,000,000) - (2,600,000)
(4,033,355) (19,819,537} - - (4,033,355) (19,819,537)
(101,517,286) (116,375,332) 7,389,338 13,166,357 (94,127,948)  (103,208,575)
55,771,366 {15,548,500) 7,389,338 13,166,357 63,160,704 (2,382,143)
(50,194229) 15548500 50,194,228 (15,548,500} - .
5,577,137 - 57,583,567 (2,382,143} 63,160,704 (2,382,143)
- - (10,261,216)  (B,252,798) {10,261,216) (8,252,798)
5,577,137 - 47322351  (10,634,941) 52,899,483 (10,634,941)
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26 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

26,3 Statement of comprehensive income
Notes

Total loss for the year
Other comprehensive income / (loss) :
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of income in

- Actuarial gains/(losses) on employees' end-of-service benefits 14

Iterns that may be reclassified te statement of insurance
operatiens' surplus in subsequent period:

- Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments, net 8

Total comprehensive income/(Joss) for the year

Insurance Operations Shareholders’ Operations Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
5,577,137 - 47,322,351 (10,634,941) 52,899,488 (10,634,941}
(1,438,651) 1,491,957 - - {1,438,651) 1,491,957
- (789,654} - - - (789,654)
4,138,486 702,303 47,322,351 (10,634,941} 51,460,837 (9.832.638)
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26 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

26.4  Statement of cash flows

Total

Insurance Operations Shareholders' Operations

Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACYIVITIES ,
Total income/(loss) for the year before zakat 55,771,366 (15,548,500} 7,389,338 13,166,357 63,160,704 (2,382,143)
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment ) 10 2,098,099 2,409,980 - - 2,098,099 2,409,980
Amortization of intangible assets 10 1,876,845 1,348,700 - - 1,876,845 1,348,700
Provision for doubtful debts 6 4,033,355 15,819,537 - . 4,033,355 19,819,537
Provision for employess' end-of-service benefits 14 4,257,890 4,048,125 - - 4,257,890 4,048,125
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investment Ra - (1,269,597) - - - (1,269,597}
Unrealized lossf(gain) from change in fair value of FYTPL &b - - 643,061 (8,359,793) 643,061 (8,359,793)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Premniums 2nd reinsurers' receivable . (32,028,508} 20,416,837 - - (32,0238,508) 20,416,837
Reinsurers' share of unearned premiumns (5,327,802) 12,706,917 - - (5,327,802) 12,706,917
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims and reserves 25,456,905 41,753,503 - - 25,456,905 41,753,503
Reinsurers' share of claims incurred but not reported (1,897,221) (10,820,550} - - (1,897,221) {10,820,550)
Deferred policy acquisition costs (1,582,004) 4,434,736 - - (1,582,604) 4,434,736
Deferred excess of loss premiums - 464,904 - - - 464,904
Prepayments and other assets (30,852,633)  (12,361,339) {166,000) (883,435} (31,018,633) (13,244,774}
Statutory deposit - - - - - -
Pelicyholders claims payable : (1,724,202) (7,716,701} - - {1,724,202) (7,716,701)
Accrued and other liabilities 21,773,266 (24,527,889) - - 21,773,266 (24,527,889)
Reinsurance balances payable (39,537,937) 38,275,552 - - {39,537,937) 38,275,552
Uneamned premiums 9,914,827 (68,366,296} - - 9,914,827 (68,366,296)
Unearned reinsurance commission 44,984 (201,495) - - 44,984 {201,495)
Qutstanding claims and reserves (42,352,053) (117,815,479 - - (42,352,053) (117,815,479)
Claims incurred but not reported (5,295,254) 16,273,758 - C - {5,295,254) 16,273,758
Accounts payable , - - 38,086 $2,333 38,086 82,333
Cash from operating activities (35,370,077)  (96,675,297) 7,904,485 4,005,462 (27,465,592) {92,669,835)
Surplus paid to policy holders - {7,729,845) - - - {7.729,845)
Employees' end-of-service benefits paid 14 (2,072,879 (2,349,880) - - (2,072.879) (2,349.880)
Zakat paid 15 - - (8,791,559) (7,912,504 (8,791,559) {7,912,504)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities B7,342.956) (106,755,022 (887,074) (3.907,060) _ (38,330,030) _(110,662,064)
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26 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

264 Statement of cash flows (continued}

Insurance Qperations Shareholders' Operations Total

Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES .
Additions of property and equipment 10 (2,895,748) (2,657,257) - - (2,895,748) (2,657,257)
Additions of intangible assets 10 {4,053,605) (2,952,255) - - {4,053,605) (2,952,255)
Procezd from disposal of available-for-sale investments 8a - 5,956,853 - - - 5,956,853
Fair value through profit or loss investment - - - (82,311,808) - (82,311,808)
Additions in murabaha deposits (507,500,000) (R13,611.999) (168,943,739} (1,222,928)  (676,448,739)  (814,834,027)
Proceed on disposal of murabaha deposits 544,030,800 811,411,999 183,506,804 64,311,492 727,537,604 875,723,491
Net cash from/A{used in) investing activities 29 581,447 (1,852,659) 14,558,065 (19,223,244) 44,139,512 (21,075,903)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Due to shareholders' operations, net 21,001,331 (28,067,858) (21,001,331} 28,067,858 - -
Net cash used in financing activity 21,001,331 (28,067 ,858) (21,001,331) 28,067,858 - -
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 13,139,822  (136,675,539) (7,330,340) 4937572 5,809,482 (131,732,967)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4 34,551,340 171,226,879 9,638,905 4,701,333 44,190,245 175,628,212
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 T I308565 9038905 —— I TTT” 4310045
Supplemental non-cash information:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments Ba - (789,654) - - - (789,654)
Actuarial gains on employees' end-of-service benefits 14 (1,438,651) 1,491,957 - - (1,438,651} 1,491,957

27  APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements was authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 27 Rajab 1442H (comesponding to. 11 March 2021).
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